
San Pedro Springs Park


Chronology 

Before 10,000 B.C.
Earliest Native American inhabitants, the Paleo-Indians, arrived in Texas.

After 6,000 B.C.
Archaic Period, cave murals are created, giant bison disappeared, Native Americans began gathering berries, roots, nuts and seeds to eat.

500 A. D. to 1500 A.D.
Late Prehistoric Period in Texas. Agricultural Natives domesticated cotton, corn, beans, squash, tomatoes and potatoes.

1500 
The Caddo Confederacy of East Texas becomes the dominant Native American group. Other major groups are the Kiowa, Wichita, Comanche, Tonkawa, Atakapan, Karankawa,  Lipan Apache, Mescalero Apache, Jumano and the Concho.

1519
Spanish Explorer Pineda mapped the Texas coast, an event considered to begin the Rule of Spain in Texas.

1528
Cabeza De Vaca shipwrecked near Galveston.

Early 1540's
Coronado explored parts of present day New Mexico, Texas, Oklahoma and Kansas. Arguably the 1st Thanksgiving Day in the US was celebrated by part of this group in Palo Duro Canyon in 1541. Priest Juan de Padilla led a feast of Thanksgiving for finding wild fruit and water after weeks of crossing the desert.

1682
Corpus Christi de la Isleta established near El Paso. The 1st Spanish Mission and pueblo in modern day Texas.

1685

French Explorer LaSalle founded Fort Louis in Matagorda Bay and killed by one of his men in 1687.

1689 to 1691
Native American warfare and disease destroyed the French force at Fort Louis. 

Spanish mission San Francisco de los Tejas, one of five in vicinity of the Neches 

River to protect against further encroachment by French settlers from Louisiana is founded.

May 19, 1691
On a trip to East Texas, Domingo Teran de los Rios and Fray Damian Massanet, a Franciscan friar, stopped in present-day San Antonio by a river and a Payaya Indian village. The Payayas, a Coahuiltecan (name given to the many bands of the Southwest) tribe, called their village Yanaguana. The Spaniards named the river San Antonio de Padua in honor of it being St. Anthony’s feast day.
1693

Teran and Massanet, founded more missions among the Native Americans called Tejas. The missions were not a success. The Tejas died by the hundreds from white man’s diseases. The soldiers, mainly bachelors and many of low character, molested the Indian women. In 1693 they were firmly shown the way home.

1709

Franciscan Father Antonio de San Buenventura Olivares and Father Isidro Espinoza under the military escort of Captain Pedro de Aguire explored the terrain where San Antonio is today. Espinosa
s diary states: Crossing a broad plain, we entered a growth of mesquite with some motts of live oaks in it. We came upon an irrigation ditch full of water and very well wooded, which was sufficient for a town, and all along it were places to tap the water, for the ditch was on high ground, and the land was sloping. We called it the Waters of San Pedro. And at a short distance we found a great shady grove of very tall pecan trees, cottonwoods, elms clumps of mulberries, which are irrigated by the water of an abundant spring. This (last) river had not been named by the Spaniards so we called the River of San Antonio de Padua.

1716

Father Espinoza returned to the springs with the Ramon Expedition and held high mass services with invited American Indians as guests. 
May 1, 1718

Father Olivares returned to the Springs by separate route than one taken by Martin de Alarcon, the new Governor of Texas, Father Olivares is given credit for founding the Mission San Antonio de Valero on May 1, 1718. (Valero was in honor of the Marquis de Valero, viceroy of Mexico at the time)

May 5, 1718
Governor Alarcon establishes the Villa de Bejar, the first presidio in San Antonio, on May 5, 1718. The Governor writes: In this place of San Antonio there is spring of water, which is about three-fourths of a league from the principal river. In this locality, in the very spot on which the Villa de Bejar was founded, it is easy to secure water. 
May 17, 1918

The Governors camp was moved on May 17th across the creek, between the creek and the river. This indicates that the original camp at the place called San Antonio was a little below the San Pedro Springs on the West bank. The Spaniards crossed over and built huts and corrals and made gardens. This was the actual beginning of the city of San Antonio.

1719

Governor Rioperda authorized the construction of the San Pedro & Upper Labor Acequia to alleviate the problems of the water shortages. The areas around the springs remained little more than an outpost. The place became a convenient place for armed travelers to camp and graze and rest their pack animals, but fear of the Indian raids kept the villagers near the safety of the Presidio. These waters would remain the main source of water for San Antonio for the next 100 years. 

1722

Marques de San Miguel de Aguayo began moving the garrison of San Antonio de Bejar from San Pedro to the present day Military Plaza.

1724
In 1724 a hurricane destroyed Mission San Antonio de Valero, which consisted of huts and a small stone tower. It was moved to its final site on what is now Alamo Plaza.

1729

King Phillip V declared the land surrounding San Pedro Springs an Ejido or Public Land.  Making San Pedro Springs Park the second oldest park in the US. Boston Commons is older.
1731

Spanish Government introduced settlers from the Canary Islands to San Antonio and granted them land parcels by the springs. Settlements began to place a strain water sources.
1810-1821

Mexican Revolution and Mexico gained Independence from Spain.

1824


Mexican land grants to Anglo settlers begin and by 1834 there are 20,000 white settlers. 

1830

Mexico bans further immigration of US citizens.
1835

The Texas Revolution began in October of 1835 in Gonzales.
1836

Battle of the Alamo. Treaties of Velasco established Texas as an independent nation. The treaties were violated or repudiated by both sides almost immediately. City of Houston was founded.

1838-1841

Captain Jack Hays of the Texas Rangers established his headquarters in San Antonio. When the Rangers were not out scouting or conducting other business they would join local Mexican caballeros and Comanche warriors on the grounds near San Pedro Springs for races and feats of horsemanship. 
1846

In anticipation of a war with Mexico and Texas still a Republic, Brevet Colonel William S. Harney arrived in San Antonio with three companies of the 2nd United States Dragoons. Since there were no quarters in town large enough to accommodate the soldiers, the men pitched their tents near the springs of San Pedro. The park became the first home of the United States garrison in Texas. Texas is annexed by the United States and San Antonio becomes headquarters for the 8th Military Department.
1846
City Council offers 100 acres of land around the springs, part of which was being used by the army for training, with the condition that the army could not dig away any of the rock around the springs. The army declined.

1849

Well-known and liked Major General William J. Worth, Commander of Military departments of Texas and New Mexico dies in San Antonio from cholera. In his memory, San Pedro Springs for a time became known as Worth Springs.
1852


City Council took official action to reserve a clearly defined area for the park.  The San Antonio Daily Ledger reported: A public square embracing an extent of fifty acres, has been set apart, above our town. From the heart of this square leap forth, from God’s alembic, the clear waters of San Pedro.

1854
A two-day county agricultural fair in Sept of 1854 was the first city and countywide event was held in the park. 
1855
Concessionaire J.J. Duerler purchased some property adjoining the springs. Various entertainment and dining businesses are reported. Regular conveyance to the springs is offered at 25 cents round trip.

1856
Secretary of War Jefferson Davis sponsored an experiment to replace army mules with camels. On June 18th the 34 camels arrived at San Pedro Springs and soon left for Kerrville. The experiment failed because the camels scared the horses.

1858
General Sam Houston, a candidate for Governor gave a speech against the Secession at the Park. He again spoke in 1860 on the same issue at San Pedro. The reception was warm and was one of his last great triumphs.

1860-1861
Civil War. Texas seceded from the U.S. San Pedro Springs was used as a Prisoner of war Camp by the Confederate Army.

1863
City fathers, apparently much concerned over the damage inflicted on the park grounds by the prison camp, passed an ordinance on December 21, 1863 making it unlawful to use the park grounds as an encampment of any sort.


Duerler developed his amusement park in San Pedro during the war and through the reconstruction.  He built five artificial lakes that were well stocked with fish just west of the large lake, an early museum of rare mineral curios and a small zoo. Old maps show an exhibition building, a small ballroom, a connecting bar, a speaker’s stand at a distance and a formal flower garden. Gustave Duerler, relative of J.J. Dueler, continued as proprietor of the park after his father’s death in 1874. In 1882 the Duerler family sold their right to the park to Frederick Kerble for $4,000.

1874



In May construction of the Alazan Acequia begins to irrigate land West of San Pedro Creek. This City built ditch would carry water from the Old Upper Labor Acequia where it crosses San Pedro at Marshall St. Plagued by problems from the beginning it was filled in in May 1875.   

1878
Colonel Augustus Belknap purchased the dormant San Antonio Street railway established in 1874, and began the first mule-drawn streetcar to San Pedro Springs Park. The original fare was 6 1/2 cents and there were continuous runs from 6 A.M. until midnight. 

1883

700 men, women and children witnessed the A. B. Grady Cowboy Company, the forerunner of today’s rodeos.

1884 
Museum of Natural History was incorporated in a hurriedly constructed frame building. Making it San Antonio’s first museum. The Victorian Summer House known as the “Grotto” was also built during this period.

1885
A large cave was discovered near the springs and human skeletons of seven-foot stature are found.     

1890

A bandstand resembling one in Alamo Plaza was built over the lion’s den (bear pit).

1891

The city assumed direct control of all city park areas. City also allowed private citizens to apply for concessions at San Pedro. In time the park began to look like carnival grounds. Rental rowboats or gondolas were introduced to the lake. The springs doubled their output but the water was now full of shells and very murky. The City installed electric lights.

1892

The Racetrack on the southeast corner of the park was replaced by a new ballpark.

1897
Mayor Bryan Callaghan ordered much needed improvements to the park. Trees were planted and bridges were repaired and painted.

1900


Buffalo Bill Cody Wild West Show entertained 20,000+ people in the park

1902    

Balloon rides and parachute exhibitions began in the park.

1907  


Electric Park opened just south of San Pedro Park.

1910


First municipally owned zoo opened at the park. Moved to Brackenridge in 1915.

1922


San Pedro Lake was concreted into a municipal swimming pool (spring-fed) and the park roads were asphalted. The bridge that spanned the lake remained intact and separated the shallow from the deep ends of the pool. The springs would completely flush the pool three times every twenty-four hours.

1929
The Little Theater and San Pedro Branch Library were built on park grounds.

1944
The springs were unable to continue a fresh flow of water and were capped by city engineers and the pool was left unused for ten years.

1952
San Pedro Park’s Centennial was celebrated.

1954

With financial assistance from H. E. Butt (prominent local grocer) a new but smaller pool was built and the San Antonio Tennis Center was opened.

1966

The ballpark was converted to a Softball Center.

1980’s
Tennis Center built a tournament grandstand above springs.  


Neighborhoods begin lobbying efforts to restore San Pedro Springs Park.

1994 


Quality of Life Bond Issue is passed. $4 million is set-aside for Phase I of San Pedro Park Master Plan.

1998


Restoration of Park begins. 

1999
The Friends of San Pedro Springs Park are founded under the non-profit umbrella of               the San Antonio Parks Foundation.

2003

Phase I & II of Park Restoration completed.

San Pedro Branch Library Spanish Barrel tile roof is restored with SA Conservation Society Grant and City funds. ($50,000) 

2004
Council District 1 awards $450,000 to upgrade, restore and preserve San Pedro Branch Library. 

Founders Day Celebrated at the park thanks to the hard work of San Antonio historian Frank Jennings, founder of the Founders Day Alliance.
2006 
Bids for library work come in over budget. 
2006   Mayor Phil Hardberger calls for the planting of large trees on the Northwest corner of park. 

2007
Councilman Flores Jr. finds $1.1 million funding for restoration, upgrade and ADA updates of San Pedro Branch Library. Architect Paul Kinneson is project architect. Work begins. 
2008
San Pedro Branch Library re-opens

2012
San Pedro receives $1.07 Million in 1012 Bond

Councilman Diego proposes Walking Trail that is not part of the Master Plan. Friends and interested parties are assured that the walking trail will incorporate the Master Plan’s intent to remove one ball diamond and leave the other as a pick-up diamond. With this the walking trail is accepted. 

2013 
Walking trail bid comes in 3 million over budget and the three quarter trail is adopted by the City leaving the ball parks for another funding round. 
2013
Two Cypress Trees die and Parks Dept. inventories all Cypress trees in park.

2014 Parks Dept. develops a watering plan for endangered cypress trees and installs drip irrigation system for the cypress trees around the pond. 
2015
Walking Trail is installed.

